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PROFILE OF THE MEMBERS OF THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi
Chairman (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi is an Non Executive Director and he is a Chartered Accountant and a
fellow of the Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and Pakistan. He
carries a vast experience of teaching, management of large scale industries, investment and
financing. He has been associated with National Investment Trust (NIT) and has served on the
Board of various companies as a nominee Director of NIT. He has attended various seminars and
lectures in the process of continuing professional development and have been associated with
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) Committee for Technical Services and also
served as a member of Quality Assurance Board of ICAP.

He is a Certified Director and had completed Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Mr. Razak H. M. Bengali
Managing Director / CEO (Executive Director)

Mr. Razak Haji Mohammed Bengali belongs to an industrialist family which has been in business
since 1947. After graduating in First Class First Position in commerce from Karachi, he joined
Siemens and proceeded to Germany where he received business education in German language
and passed the examination of Industrial Businessmen (equivalent to MBA).

After coming back from Germany, he remained associated with his family business for about 30
years. At present, he is the Chief Executive of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (an engineering unit
producing automotive steel wheel rims), which position he has been holding since July, 1998.

He has been the Chairman of Filament Yarn Manufacturers Association, and Vice President of the
Employers Federation of Pakistan.

Also, he has been the President and Vice President of Pakistan German Business Forum (PGBF)
for a long number of years. He made this institution active and vibrant which has the recognition
and support of various Government organizations and the business people in Pakistan and in
Germany.

He holds the membership of the following social bodies:

1. Member and Past President of Karachi Gymkhana
2. Member of Karachi Boat Club
3. Member of Rotary Club of Karachi Continental
4. Member of Defence Authority Country & Golf Club

Also, he has participated in various international seminars, and has widely traveled around the
globe. Besides English and Urdu, he is well-versed in German language.
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Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri
Director Marketing / Business Development (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri is a Graduate from Sindh University. After graduation, he
proceeded to Saudi Arabia and started his business of trading, imports and distribution of food
items from 1982 and captured a larger market share in this field in Saudi Arabia.

He came back to Pakistan and set up a food processing industry with the name of Zaiqa Food
Industries in the year 1995. The unit is engaged in processing of spices and other foods items and
in exports of the same to the gulf countries, the Middle East, the UK, the USA and the Canada.
In the year 1998, he took over with the association of his friends the management of Baluchistan
Wheels Limited, and since then he is involved in managing and running the company with
dedication and hard-work. He is a man of wisdom and possesses business acumen.

He has been the member of Managing Committee of the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of
Commerce & Industry. He has also served as the Chairman of Pakistan Association of Automotive
Parts & Accessories Manufacturers (PAAPAM) and played an active role for the growth of
Vending Industry as well as for the Auto Industry in the Country.

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani joined Baluchistan Wheels Ltd as Chief Operating Officer (C.O.O) in
the year 1996 and took the responsibility of planning and production. He has been instrumental in
the balancing modernization and expansion of various Plant facilities at BWL. He has over 30
years of experience in the field of manufacturing, marketing & administration. He has been
associated with various business groups. He is certified Director and had successfully completed
Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah
Independent Director

Syed Zubair Ahmad Shah is MBA from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) Karachi and
MPhil in Economics from Glasgow University UK. He did post graduate diploma in General
Management of State Enterprises with distinction from the Research Institute for Development
Sciences, Netherlands. In addition he has attended and qualified various short international
seminars/courses in the field of Privatization, Development Policies, Corporate Planning and
Performance Evaluation etc. He joined NIT on May 21, 2010 as Controller of Branches. He have
been representing NIT as Director on the Board of various Companies since 1999.Presently he
represents NIT as Director on the Board of Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. He is an independent
Director on the Board of Baluchistan Wheels Ltd.
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Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi
Independent Director

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi has over 30 years of versatile experience in the fields of
Investment-Banking, Feasibility Studies of projects and its implementation by raising equity &
debt, Leasing, Finance and Corporate affairs and Manufacturing. He had been associated with
Baluchistan Wheels Ltd (BWL) for over 15 years in various capacities as company secretary,
Head of Finance & Director on the Board. He retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015
and is very well versed with the Auto Vending and Assembly Industry. He is a Commerce
Graduate and an MBA besides he is also a member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Managers.

Mr. Muhammad Javed
Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Javed is a Mechanical Engineer and life time member of Pakistan Engineering
Council. He had foreign training in Japan and visits to China, Taiwan, Malaysia, Netherlands,
Turkey and India for technical agreement, selection /testing and development of plant machinery
and equipment.
He has over 40 years’ experience of managing engineering and automobile wheel industry. He
retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015 after serving 31years at various positions,
Head of Technical Division and Director on Board and executed projects of Plant Expansion
&Modernization.

Mrs. Saba Nadeem
Non-Executive / Female Director

Mrs. Saba Nadeem belongs to a business family. She has done A 'Levels. Also, she has done
Diploma in Interior Designing from the Indus Valley School of Arts, and remained involved in
activities like Fabric Painting and Glass Painting. She has been a teacher in a grammar school in
Clifton, Karachi.

She is a Certified Director and had completed Director Education Certification Program from the
Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP).

She has developed a special interest in being involved in business and commerce and, therefore,
she has chosen to be on the Board of Directors of Baluchistan Wheels Limited.

Mr. Aamir Amin
Independent Director

Mr. Aamir Amin is at present Head of Finance of National Investment Trust Limited. Mr. Amin is a
Chartered Accountant by profession from Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
with training from Ernst & Young – Pakistan. He is also a Certified Information Systems Auditor
(CISA). He has work experience of over 19 years, substantially in financial services industry and
also represents NIT as Nominee Director on various Boards.

6



MANAGEMENT TEAM
Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali

Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer
(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri
Director Marketing / Business Development

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Chief Operating Officer

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Yunus Ladha
Chief Financial Officer / Sr. General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Ladha is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) & a fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of
Pakistan (ICMAP). Besides this he is also fellow member of Chartered Secretaries, Certified
Internal Control Auditor (USA) and CPA (UK).

He is also a member of the Economic Advisory & Government Relationship Committee of the
ICAP. He has over thirty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation &
Corporate Affairs.

He has worked in various multinational / public listed companies. He is associated with the
Company since 1996. Presently, he is CFO / Senior General Manager (Finance).

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak
General Manager (Finance) / Deputy CFO

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak has done his EMBA from Karachi School of Business
Leadership (KSBL), he is also MBA (Finance) and MCS. He is associated with the
company since year 2000 and currently working as General Manager Finance / Deputy
CFO.

He has vast experience in the field of Accounts & Finance, Treasury, Banking Matters  
& Corporate Affairs. 
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MANAGEMENT TEAM
Syed Pervez Akhtar
General Manager (H.R / I.R)

Syed Pervez Akhtar has done his MBA in Human Resource Management and is also
a Law Graduate.

He carries working experience of 25 years in the areas of Human Resource
Management and Industrial Relations in reputed organizations such as Kohinoor
Chemical Co. (Tibet Group), S.G. Fiber Limited and Pak Hy-Oils Limited.

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary / Deputy General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP). He has over twenty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation,
Internal Audit & Corporate Affairs. He has worked in various public listed companies. At present,
he is working as Company Secretary / Deputy General Manage (Finance).

He is associated with the company since 2007. In addition he has attended various seminars
/courses / conferences on Finance / Taxation / Audit / Corporate & Financial Reporting /Budget
etc.

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani
Deputy General Manager (Supply & Services)

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani completed his BSc (Hons) Accounting from University of Hull,
England and MSc Banking and International Finance from Cass Business School,
London, England.

He has previously worked at Standard Chartered and NIB Bank. Mr. Kumail is a
progressive minded individual who joined us in 2014. Currently he is working as Head
of Supply & Services Department.

Mr. Atif Iqbal
Chief Internal Auditor

Mr. Atif Iqbal has done his MBA in Finance. He is associated with the Company since
2004 and currently working as Chief Internal Auditor / Senior Manager. He has over
eighteen years of experience in the field of Audit, Finance, Taxation, Treasury &
Banking Matters and Corporate Affairs.
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCESTATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Rupees in '000'

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Turnover - net 1,675,857 2,778,192 1,574,822 912,820 1,587,558 1,882,640 

Cost of Sales (1,349,925) (2,166,540) (1,331,759) (795,406) (1,341,776) (1,612,676)

Gorss Profit 325,932 611,652 243,063 117,414 245,782 269,964 

Distribution Costs (57,325) (66,798) (51,477) (35,424) (44,945) (60,116)

Administration Expenses (120,601) (116,612) (91,246) (82,148) (92,595) (92,075)

Other Expenses (41,796) (51,406) (10,496) (1,784) (12,541) (8,284)

Finance Costs (5,559) (3,976) (4,216) (2,353) (6,791) (1,927)

(225,281) (238,792) (157,435) (121,709) (156,872) (162,402)

Other Income 101,101 52,514 55,940 27,990 5,045 180 

Profit before Taxation 201,752 425,374 141,568 23,695 93,955 107,742 

Taxation (65,346) (217,136) (40,882) (4,775) (22,443) (19,953)

Profit after Taxation 136,406 208,238 100,686 18,920 71,512 87,789 
Earnings per Share (Rupees) - Basic and Diluted 10.23 15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36 6.58

SIGNIFICANT RATIOS AND STATISTICS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Liquidity & Leverage Ratios:

-Current Ratios 5.46 4.13 4.59 7.72 7.04 6.31
-Quick Ratios 2.78 2.50 3.26 4.50 3.05 2.45
-Liability as a % of Total Assets 12.80 16.59 15.59 14.19 12.59 13.25
-Interest Cover Ratio (Times) 37.28 107.99 34.58 11.07 14.84 56.91

Equity Ratios:
-Break up Value per Share (Rs) 154.19 153.12 144.06 97.09 96.59 95.18
-Dividend as a % of Capital 80.00 100.00 45.00 15.00 20.00 30.00
-Dividend Yield Ratio/ Cost of Equity (%) 12.12 13.16 5.70 2.47 3.27 2.77
-Dividend per Share (Rs) 8.00 10.00 4.50 1.50 2.00 3.00

Profitability Ratios:
-Gross Profit (%) 19.45 22.02 15.43 12.86 15.48 14.34
-Operating Profit( %) 12.37 17.30 9.92 3.05 6.34 5.83
-Profit before Tax(%) 12.04 15.31 8.99 2.60 5.92 5.72
-Profit after Tax (%) 8.14 7.50 6.39 2.07 4.50 4.66
-Return on Capital Employed( %) 9.81 20.83 7.37 1.83 7.29 8.49
-Earnings per Share (Rs) 10.23 15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36 6.58
-Price Earing Ratio(Times) 6.45 4.87 10.46 42.80 11.41 16.45
-Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 78.20 64.03 59.59 105.71 37.31 45.56
-Dividend Cover (Times) 1.28 1.56 1.68 0.95 2.68 2.19
-Capital Turnover (Times) 0.82 1.36 0.82 0.71 1.23 1.48
-Return on Assets (%) 5.78 8.51 4.42 1.25 4.85 6.00

Turnover/Efficiency Ratios:
-Inventory Turnover Ratio(Times) 2.13 4.51 3.19 1.55 2.31 2.78
-Debtor Turnover Ratio(Times) 9.09 10.63 8.44 7.22 10.25 14.41
-Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio(Times) 1.77 2.88 1.66 2.28 3.53 3.80

Plant Capacity: 
-Plant Capacity Utilisation (%) 39 76 44 42 79 96

Share Performance:
-Year end Market Price per Share 66.00 76.00 78.99 60.73 61.15 108.21
-High Price per Share during the Year 86.49 90.75 92.44 71.89 111.90 160.94
-Low Price per Share during the Year 57.00 62.00 55.20 40.27 61.15 96.00
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSISSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 11
2023                  

Rs. in '000'
2023 Vs. 2022    

(%)
2022                  

Rs. in '000'
2022 Vs. 2021    

(%)
2021                  

Rs. in '000'
2021 Vs. 2020    

(%)
2020                 

Rs. in '000'
2020 Vs. 2019    

(%)
2019                 

Rs. in '000'
2019 Vs. 2018    

(%)
2018                 

Rs. in '000'
2018 Vs. 2017   

(%)

ASSETS
Non Current Assets

Property,plant & equipment 946,396 (2) 963,138 1 950,050 129 414,291 (8) 449,581 (9) 494,967 35 

Long-term loans & advances 7,753 26 6,138 (1) 6,176 61 3,826 12 3,415 (11) 3,855 (10)

Long-term deposits 8,579 12 7,649 (1) 7,709 74 4,418 (4) 4,607 (20) 5,777 14 

962,728 (1) 976,925 1 963,935 128 422,535 (8) 457,603 (9) 504,599 34 

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts & loose tools 36,505 (8) 39,729 5 37,804 (4) 39,345 (23) 50,840 (7) 54,455 (3)

Stock-in-trade 649,130 20 539,764 57 343,671 (17) 413,575 (21) 525,105 (1) 532,188 3 

Trade debts 110,408 (57) 258,317 (2) 264,625 144 108,542 (25) 144,187 (13) 165,572 73 

Loans and advances 38,408 (6) 41,073 28 32,004 96 16,331 3 15,914 (36) 24,805 (24)

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 778 (46) 1,433 158 556 (67) 1,709 (27) 2,347 15 2,049 21 

Other receivables 13,951 1,661 792 (97) 29,986 328 7,010 1,526 431 (54) 928 (68)

Short term investments 514,904 (2) 523,766 (5) 550,573 65 333,906 225 102,827 1,764 5,516 (98)

Taxation - net - (100) - (100) 32,690 (68) 103,518 (20) 129,302 (9) 141,608 83 

Sales tax refundable - net 12,049 100 - (100) 595 100 1,826 100 - - - (100)

Bank balances 18,772 (72) 66,034 242 19,320 (68) 60,362 34 44,994 45 31,116 13 

1,394,905 (5) 1,470,908 12 1,311,824 21 1,086,124 7 1,015,947 6 958,237 (12)

TOTAL ASSETS 2,357,633 (4) 2,447,833 8 2,275,759 51 1,508,659 2 1,473,550 1 1,462,836 0 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Share Capital 133,343 - 133,343 - 133,343 - 133,343 - 133,343 - 133,343 -

Revaluation Surplus on land 579,075 - 579,075 8 538,518 100 - - -

Revenue Reserves 1,343,553 1 1,329,352 6 1,249,035 8 1,161,311 1 1,154,676 2 1,135,647 3 

2,055,971 1 2,041,770 6 1,920,896 48 1,294,654 1 1,288,019 1 1,268,990 2 

Non Current Liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance 
lease 13,768 (1) 13,949 (41) 23,477 271 6,330 540 989 (81) 5,306 7 

Long term loan - (100) - (100) 10,418 (66) 30,849 100 

Long term deposits 1,115 24 896 (36) 1,405 43 982 (51) 2,010 18 1,710 96 

Long term Govt Grant - (100) - (100) 91 (95) 1,923 100 

GIDC Payable - (100) - (100) 1,311 100 - - - -

Deferred taxation 31,485 (10) 34,972 4 33,694 1 33,293 (13) 38,250 9 34,958 20 

46,368 (7) 49,817 (29) 70,396 (4) 73,377 78 41,249 (2) 41,974 20 
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 187,926 3 183,306 (24) 240,350 105 116,995 (7) 125,289 (6) 133,499 (22)

Unclaimed dividend 8,184 15 7,087 17 6,065 3 5,913 (14) 6,846 30 5,281 9 
Current portion of
- liabilities against assets subject to finance 

leases 20,197 63 12,365 (12) 13,973 164 5,302 41 3,747 (29) 5,257 78 

- long term loan - (100) 8,790 (56) 19,768 127 8,711 100 

- long term deposits 89 (92) 1,053 87 563 (61) 1,457 100 - - - -

- long term Government Grant - (100) 91 (93) 1,278 (11) 1,438 100 

- GIDC Payable - (100) 175 (70) 581 100 

Provision for warranty 1,502 (45) 2,716 44 1,889 132 813 (40) 1,354 (73) 5,033 24 

Taxation-net 37,396 100 130,781 100 - - - - - -

Sales tax payable - net - 100 9,882 100 - - (100) 7,046 100 2,802 100 

255,294 (28) 356,246 25 284,467 102 140,629 (3) 144,282 (5) 151,872 (17)

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,357,633 (4) 2,447,833 8 2,275,759 51 1,508,659 2 1,473,550 1 1,462,836 0 



HORIZONTAL ANALYSISSTATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 12
2023                  

Rs. in '000'
2023 Vs. 2022    

(%)
2022                  

Rs. in '000'
2022 Vs. 2021    

(%)
2021                  

Rs. in '000'
2021 Vs. 2020    

(%)
2020                  

Rs. in '000'
2020 Vs. 2019    

(%)
2019                  

Rs. in '000'
2019 Vs. 

2018    (%)
2018                  

Rs. in '000'
2018 Vs. 2017    

(%)

Turnover - net 1,675,857 (40) 2,778,192 76 1,574,822 73 912,820 (43) 1,587,558 (16) 1,882,640 23 

Cost of Sales (1,349,925) (38) (2,166,540) 63 (1,331,759) 67 (795,406) (41) (1,341,776) (17) (1,612,676) 31 

Gorss Profit 325,932 (47) 611,652 152 243,063 107 117,414 (52) 245,782 (9) 269,964 (10)

Administration Expenses (120,601) 3 (116,612) 28 (91,246) 11 (82,148) (11) (92,676) 1 (92,075) 7 

Selling and distribution Exp (57,325) (14) (66,798) 30 (51,477) 45 (35,424) (21) (44,945) (25) (60,116) 22 

Other expenses (41,796) (19) (51,406) 390 (10,496) 488 (1,784) (86) (12,541) 51 (8,284) (45)

Other Income 101,101 93 52,514 (6) 55,940 100 27,990 446 5,126 2,748 180 (99)

(118,621) (35) (182,302) 87 (97,279) 6 (91,366) (37) (145,036) (10) (160,295) 28 

Operating Profit 207,311 429,350 145,784 26,048 100,746 109,669 

Finance Costs (5,559) 40 (3,976) (6) (4,216) 79 (2,353) (65) (6,791) 252 (1,927) 40 

Profit before Taxation 201,752 (53) 425,374 200 141,568 497 23,695 (75) 93,955 (13) 107,742 (37)

Taxation (65,346) (70) (217,136) 431 (40,882) 756 (4,775) (79) (22,443) 12 (19,953) (56)

Profit after Taxation 136,406 (34) 208,238 107 100,686 432 18,920 (74) 71,512 (19) 87,789 (31)

Earnings per Share-
Basic and Diluted 
(Rupees) 10.23 (34) 15.62 107 7.55 432 1.42 (74) 5.36 (19) 6.58 (31)



VERTICAL ANALYSISSTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 13
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' %

ASSETS
Non Current Assets

Property,plant & equipment 946,396 40.1 963,138 40.9 950,050 38.8 414,291 18.2 449,581 29.8 494,967 33.6

Long-term loans & advances 7,753 0.3 6,138 0.3 6,176 0.3 3,826 0.2 3,415 0.2 3,855 0.3

Long-term deposits 8,579 0.4 7,649 0.3 7,709 0.3 4,418 0.2 4,607 0.3 5,777 0.4

962,728 40.8 976,925 41.4 963,935 39.4 422,535 28.0 457,603 30.3 504,599 34.2

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts & loose tools 36,505 1.5 39,729 1.7 37,804 1.5 39,345 1.7 50,840 3.4 54,455 3.7

Stock-in-trade 649,130 27.5 539,764 22.9 343,671 14.0 413,575 18.2 525,105 34.8 532,188 36.1

Trade debts 110,408 4.7 258,317 11.0 264,625 10.8 108,542 4.8 144,187 9.6 165,572 11.2

Loans and advances 38,408 1.6 41,073 1.7 32,004 1.3 16,330 0.7 15,914 1.1 24,805 1.7

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 778 0.0 1,433 0.1 556 0.0 1,709 0.1 2,347 0.2 2,049 0.1

Other receivables 13,951 0.6 792 0.0 29,986 1.2 7,010 0.3 431 0.0 928 0.1

Short term investments 514,904 21.8 523,766 22.2 550,573 22.5 333,906 14.7 102,827 6.8 5,516 0.4

Taxation - net - 0.0 - 0.0 32,690 1.3 103,518 4.5 129,302 8.6 141,608 9.6

Sales tax refundable - net 12,049 0.5 - 0.0 595 0.0 1,827 0.1 - 0.0 - 0.0

Bank balances 18,772 0.8 66,034 2.8 19,320 0.8 60,362 2.7 44,994 3.0 31,116 2.1

1,394,905 59.2 1,470,908 62.4 1,311,824 53.6 1,086,124 47.7 1,015,947 67.3 958,237 65.0

TOTAL ASSETS 2,357,633 100.0 2,447,833 103.8 2,275,759 93.0 1,508,659 66.3 1,473,550 97.7 1,462,836 99.3

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Share Capital 133,343 5.7 133,343 5.7 133,343 5.4 133,343 5.9 133,343 8.8 133,343 9.0

Revaluation Surplus on land 579,075 24.6 579,075 24.6 538,518 22.0 - 0.0

Revenue Reserves 1,343,553 57.0 1,329,352 56.4 1,249,035 51.0 1,161,311 51.0 1,154,676 76.5 1,135,647 77.1

2,055,971 87.2 2,041,770 86.6 1,920,896 78.5 1,294,654 56.9 1,288,019 85.4 1,268,990 86.1

Non Current Liabilities

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 13,768 0.6 13,949 0.6 23,477 1.0 6,330 0.3 989 0.1 5,306 0.4

Long term loan - 0.0 - 0.0 10,418 0.4 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0

Long term deposits 1,115 0.0 896 0.0 1,405 0.1 982 0.0 2,010 0.1 1,710 0.1

Long term Govt Grant - 0.0 - 0.0 91 0.0 1,923 0.1

GIDC Payable - 0.0 - 0.0 1,311 0.1

Deferred taxation 31,485 1.3 34,972 1.5 33,694 1.4 33,293 1.5 38,250 2.5 34,958 2.4

46,368 2.0 49,817 2.1 70,396 2.9 73,377 3.2 41,249 2.7 41,974 2.8
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 187,926 8.0 183,306 7.8 240,350 9.8 116,995 5.1 125,289 8.3 133,499 9.1

Unclaimed dividend 8,184 0.3 7,087 0.3 6,065 0.2 5,913 0.3 6,846 0.5 5,281 0.4
Current portion of

- liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 20,197 0.9 12,365 0.5 13,973 0.6 5,302 0.2 3,747 0.2 5,257 0.4

- long term loan - 0.0 8,790 0.4 19,768 0.8 8,711 0.4

- long term deposits 89 0.0 1,053 0.0 563 0.0 1,457 0.1 - 0.0 - 0.0

- long term Govt Grant - 0.0 91 0.0 1,278 0.1 1,438 0.1

- GIDC Payable - 0.0 175 0.0 581 0.0

Provision for warranty 1,502 0.1 2,716 0.1 1,889 0.1 813 0.0 1,354 0.1 5,033 0.3

Taxation-net 37,396 1.6 130,781 5.5 - 0.0 - - 0.0 - 0.0

Sales tax payable - net - 0.0 9,882 0.4 - 0.0 - 7,046 0.5 2,802 0.2

255,294 10.8 356,246 15.1 284,467 11.6 140,629 6.2 144,282 9.6 151,872 10.3

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,357,633 100.0 2,447,833 103.8 2,275,759 93.0 1,508,659 66.3 1,473,550 97.7 1,462,836 99.3



VERTICAL ANALYSISSTATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' %

Turnover - net 1,675,857 100 2,778,192 100 1,574,822 100 912,820 100 1,587,558 100 1,882,640 100

Cost of Sales (1,349,925) (48.59) (2,166,540) (77.98) (1,331,759) (84.57) (795,406) (87.14) (1,341,776) (84.52) (1,612,676) (85.66)

Gorss Profit 325,932 11.73 611,652 22.02 243,063 15.43 117,414 12.86 245,782 15.48 269,964 14.34 

Administration expenses (120,601) (4.34) (116,612) (4.20) (91,246) (5.79) (82,148) (9.00) (92,676) (5.84) (92,075) (4.89)

Selling and distribution Exp (57,325) (2.06) (66,798) (2.40) (51,477) (3.27) (35,424) (3.88) (44,945) (2.83) (60,116) (3.19)

Other expenses (41,796) (1.50) (51,406) (1.85) (10,496) (0.67) (1,784) (0.20) (12,541) (0.79) (8,284) (0.44)

Other Income 101,101 3.64 52,514 1.89 55,940 3.55 27,990 3.07 5,126 0.32 180 0.01 

(118,621) (182,302) (97,279) (91,366) (145,036) (160,295)

Operating Profit 207,311 7.46 429,350 15.45 145,784 5.25 26,048 0.94 100,746 3.63 109,669 3.95 

Finance Cost (5,559) (0.20) (3,976) (0.14) (4,216) (0.27) (2,353) (0.26) (6,791) (0.43) (1,927) (0.10)

Profit before Taxation 201,752 7.26 425,374 15.31 141,568 8.99 23,695 2.60 93,955 5.92 107,742 5.72 

Taxation (65,346) (2.35) (217,136) (7.82) (40,882) (2.60) (4,775) (0.52) (22,443) (1.41) (19,953) (1.06)

Profit after Taxation 136,406 4.91 208,238 7.50 100,686 6.39 18,920 2.07 71,512 4.50 87,789 4.66 
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND ITSDISTRIBUTION 15



REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF 
BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN 
ACHIEVING THE COMPANY’S OBJECTIVES: 
 
The Board of Directors (the Board) of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (BWL) has performed their 
duties diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed the 
affairs of the Company in an effective andefficient manner. The Board has exercised its powers 
andhas performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance 
1984), the Listed Companies Corporate Governance Regulations 2019(the Code) and the RuleBook 
of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (the Rule Book) wherethe Company is listed.  
 
The Board during the year ended 30 June 2023 played an effective role in managing the affairs of the 
Company andachieving its objectives in the following manner; 
 

� The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive, independent 
and female directors on theBoard and its committees as required under the Code and that 
members of the Board and its respectivecommittees have adequate skill, experience and 
knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company; 

 
� The Board has formed an Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration 

Committee and has approved theirrespective terms of references and has assigned adequate 
resources so that the committees perform theirresponsibilities diligently;  

 
� The Board has developed and put in place the rigorous mechanism for an annual evaluation 

of its own performanceand that of its committees and individual directors. The findings of 
the annual evaluation are assessed andre-evaluated by the Board periodically;  

 
� The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable 

them to perform theirduties in an effective manner and that the five directors of the 
Company have certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the 
Company have the exemption from the requirements of the Directors’ Training Program; 

 
� The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its Committees were held 

with the requisitequorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and 
that the minutes of all the meetings(including committees) are appropriately recorded and
maintained;  

 
� The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and 

corporate values adheredthrough the Company and has developed significant policies for 
smooth functioning; 

16



 
� All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its 

committees to strengthen andformalize the corporate decision making process; 
 

� All the related party transactions executed by theCompany were approved by the Board on 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee;  

 
� The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular 

assessment throughself-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit activities;  
 

� The Board has prepared and approved the director’s report and has ensured that the 
directors’ report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statements of the 
Company and the content of the directors’ report are in accordance with the requirement of 
applicable laws and regulations;  
 

� The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and compensation of the Chief Executive and 
other key executivesincluding Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of 
Internal Audit;  
 

� The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely 
manner and the Boardmembers are kept abreast of developments between meetings; and  
 

� The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in 
accordance with the relevant lawsand regulation applicable on the Company and the Board 
has always prioritized the Compliance with all theapplicable laws and regulation in terms of 
their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decisionmaking.  
 

The evaluation of the Board’s performance is assessed based on those key areas where the Board 
requires clarity inorder to provide high level oversight, including thestrategic process; key business 
drivers and performing milestones,the global economic environment and competitive context in 
which the Company operates; the risk faced by theCompany’s business; Board dynamics; capability 
and information flows.  
 
Based on the aforementioned, it canreasonably be stated that the Board of BWL has played a key 
role in ensuring that the Company objectives are notonly achieved, but also exceeded expectations 
through a joint effort with the management team and guidance andoversight by the Board and its 
members. 
 
 
 
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI 
Chairman  
August 18, 2023 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORTThe Directors are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2023.  BUSINESS REVIEW Over all at the national level, the Passenger Cars(PCs), LCVs, Vans and Jeep sales shrunk  by 56%  to 123,954 units in Financial Year (FY) 23 as compared to 278,899 units in FY 22.  In the same manner, Trucks/Buses sales declined by 41% to 3,836 units in FY 23 as compared to 6,498 units in FY 22. The Tractors sales also decreased by 48% to30,942 units in FY 2023 as compared to 58,947 units in FY 22.  The decrease in overall automobile sales in FY 23 was due to: (i) Govt’s restrictions on opening of Letters of Credit (LCs).  for import of CKD kits (ii) Significant increase in auto prices mostly reflecting the impact of a depreciating PKR (iii) SBP’s shortening of financing terms and (iv) High interest rates amid economic slowdown.  During the FY 23, the company had overall consolidated revenue of Rs.1,675.857 million as compared to Rs.2,778.192 million which is 40% lower than FY 22. The car wheels sales was Rs. 759.675 million as compared to Rs. 1,403.692 million in the previous year decreased by 46%. The Truck / Bus wheels sales was Rs. 153.198 million as compared to Rs. 229.197 million in the previous year decreased by 33%.Similarly, the Tractor wheels sales was also decreased to Rs. 664.916 million as compared to Rs. 993.229 million in the previous year decreased by 33%.The scrap sales were Rs. 95.138 million as compared to Rs. 152.037 million in the previous year which is less than 37%. However the export sales were Rs.2.929 million in FY 23. The Cost of Sales was Rs. 1,349.922 million during the year under review as against Rs. 2,166.540 million, last year  FINANCIAL RESULTS The gross profit decreased by 47% to Rs. 325.935 million as against Rs. 611.652 million last year. Similarly, the company earned profit after taxation ofRs. 138.011million as compared to Rs. 208.238 million in the previous year, reduced by 34%.  The main reason for decline in gross profit and net profit during the year under review is due to depressed demand for wheels in all segments which is due to the plant shutdown of various assemblers of the Auto Sector because of non-availability of raw materials and shortage of auto-parts owing to restrictions on opening of LCs. As a result of drop in sales orders, the production activities of the company were also temporarily closed from December 12, 2022 to January 06, 2023 and thereafter from April 07,2023 to April 20,2023. 18



The comparative financial results for the year 2023 as against the year 2022 are as follows:   2023 2022  (Rs. in ‘000) Turnover-net 1,675,857 2,778,192 Gross Profit 325,932 611,652 Profit before Taxation 201,753 425,374 Profit after Taxation 136,406 208,238 Earnings per Share (Rs.) 10.23 15.62    EARNINGS PER SHARE Based on the net profit for the current year, the earnings per share is Rs. 10.23(2022: Rs. 15.62)  DIVIDEND  The Board of Directors have approved final cash dividend of Rs. 3.5 per share(35%) for the year ended June 30, 2023 amounting Rs.46.669 million (2022: Rs.4.75 per share 47.50% amounting Rs.63.338 million). This is in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 4.50 per share (45%) already declared and paid to the shareholders thus making a total of Rs. 8.00 per share cash dividend (80%) for the FY 23.  HUMAN RESOURCE & WELFARE SCHEMES We firmly believe that our officers, staff and workforce are the backbone of our business. The management believes in encouraging the talented and dedicated employees, who are frequently sent for training at home and abroad to update their professional and technical skills. Human resource policies were designed to ensure best practices to attract, recruit, develop and retain highest quality of human capital.  Direct and indirect rewards to the workforce like worker-of-the-month award, special health allocation and many other such benefits are in place. The Labour laws are strictly followed and the company is able to maintain cordial relationships with CBA Labour Union. The management is also regularly paying bonus to all the employees. WPPF as well as Eid advance are also being paid to the workers. The Company also gives workers social security and EOBI pension benefit / facilities. This year the management has entered into CBA agreement with CBA labour union for a period of two years.   SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT We are actively managing health and safety risks associated with our manufacturing process and are working towards improving our procedures to reduce and control the risk of accidents or injuries during work, and up till now, no serious accident has taken place during the production, resulting in any major injury or loss of life. All the employees at plant are provided with safety appliance/equipment i.e. uniforms, shoes, helmets, ear plugs, gloves, goggles, etc. during performance of their duties. Firefighting system has been installed to cope with any mishap and full time safety officer is employed for this job. In-house Fire Fighting and safety training and exercises are carried out regularly. 19



 The company allows and shall continue to allow medical facilities and other facilities as may be adequate from time to time for up keep of health of its employees. A dispensary with qualified dispenser has been established in the factory for all types of treatment/emergency. Services of qualified MBBS doctors have been hired on retainer-ship basis for treatment/emergency of employees. Workers medical check-up is conducted by a certified surgeon  every six months. Apart from this, healthy activities of sports are encouraged, and we have a cricket as well as a football team. Every year, picnic, is arranged for Officers and workers.   Protection of environment is of prime concern and every measure is being taken to preserve nature and to maintain clean environment at workplaces. Green environment is maintained by planting trees and grass all around the factory. BWL fully discourages the use of substance of concern and ensure that all the products and materials procured and products manufactured are free from hazardous material.  We comply with all applicable laws, regulations and conditions as required by environmental standards. Also design new facilities and conduct operations with preventive approach and industry best practices to avoid adverse impacts to the human health and the environment. Ensure appropriate training and awareness on environmental systems, procedures, best practices and on shared responsibility towards environmental protection among employees, contractors, suppliers and customers. Regularly review environmental performance and carry out audit and set targets to achieve continuous improvement.  The company has obtained International Certification ISO-14001 of environment to meet the International Environment Standards and has been recertified by the International Agency.  ENERGY CONSERVATION  Effective measures and steps are being taken to conserve energy, wherever possible in the area of electricity, gas and heating system to reduce the consumption of electricity, gas and fuels etc. In this regard, a comprehensive plan is made and implemented and production and operations are planned in such a manner that only essential plants are operated in electricity peak hours.  UPGRADATION OF PLANT & PROCESS  The company is producing wheels as per International Standards, and to meet the customers’product specification and quality requirements it is necessary that plant and machinery and process are continuously upgraded and maintained in good working and operative condition, so that we get a satisfactory performance and machinery and equipment give a good and longer period of workable life.  Foreign technical experts are engaged from time to time and continuous liaison is kept with the plant and machinery/equipment suppliers for technical advice and improvements.  This year following machines were refurbished/overhauled in FY 23:  20



a. We have overhauled and refurbished 1x2500KVA, 2X1500KVA, 1X300KVA power transformers, 6X 11KV H.T Switch gears, 5 x L.T switch gears panels 2x Power factor improvement panels installed in factory for supplying power to plant and machinery in the financial year 2022-2023 . b. We have installed proper LPG setup furnished with 100kg/hour vaporizer unit with regulators and a header to accommodate 30 gas cylinders at a time. After installing this set up we are now able to run our production smoothly during the period when sui gas is not available specially in winter season. c. Up-gradation of RGM-3 machine was completed and the software is updated now with new Programmable control logic (PLC), Human machine interface (HMI), motorized and manual slides at the gauging station is also installed and now the machine is on testing and checking phase.  RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY CONTROL   The Research and Development (R&D) Department is constantly engaged to support the development of new products and production as per customer’s satisfaction and international standards. Over the year the R&D facilities have grown and our Design Office is now capable of computer aided designing of products, tool & dies, jigs and fixtures and FEA / Computer analysis of design for confirmation and 3D model development.  R&D Department has a complete Tool & Die manufacturing shop equipped with the Conventional and CNC Machines for in-house manufacturing of complete set of Tools Dies, Fixtures, Jigs, Gauges and running Tooling Spares to meet the production requirement and also support in repair andmanufacturing of machinery spares etc.   Our R&D Department has highly experienced and qualified team to carry out the repair and maintenance of the production tooling. The team is constantly endeavoring to improve the process, reduce down time and rejections by analyzing and supporting for addition of latest equipment, machinery and tooling etc.  Wheel being a critical and safety part requiring very stringent dimensional control is being manufactured with a standard quality control procedures and quality is being assured right from the material procurements to the final delivery to the customers.  Quality Control Department is equipped with the requisite international standard testing equipment, tool and instruments to control the process and to monitor the quality of wheels. The instruments / gauges, quality checking equipment are regularly up graded and calibrated to ensure its precision and accuracy so that products are produce as per customer quality requirement, and this is also supplemented by the experienced and trained manpower.  COMPANY’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE ECONOMY OF THE COUNTRY Your company being an import substitution unit is contributing to the economy by saving foreign exchange and is very important vending industry for the auto assemblers.  During the year under review, your company saved approx. $5.830 million foreign exchange reserves on account of supply of wheels to the OEM’s and contributed to national exchequer by paying income tax, sales  21



tax and other indirect taxes to the tune of Rs.451million (approx.). Besides, it is also providing employment opportunities to the local people residing in Hub and other adjoining areas.  CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK The Board of Directors and the Company remain committed to the principles of good corporate management practice with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. The Board and management are cognizant of their responsibilities and monitor the Company’s operations and performance to enhance the accuracy, comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and non-financial information.  In Compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange the Board Members / Directors are pleased to place the following statements on record:  a. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.  b. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.  c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.  d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.  e. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.    f. There are no significant doubts in the company’s ability to continue as going concern.  Key Operating and Financial Data  The Key operating and financial data for last six years is given in this report.  Government Taxes  Outstanding Taxes were Rs.37.396 million as disclosed in the Financial Statements.   Investment of Employees Retirement Funds  The following were the value of investments held by employee’s retirement benefits fund at the year end:  June 23( un-audited) 
- Executive Provident Fund Rs. 146.562million 
- Non-Executive Provident Fund Rs.    63.893 million 
- Gratuity Fund Rs.  103.429million  22



Composition of the Board  In line with the requirements of the CCG, the Company encourages representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.   The current composition of the Board is as follows:   Total number of  Directors: Total Number of Directors : 9 including (a) Male         : 8 (b) Female     : 1   Composition of the Board: (a) Independent Directors:4 (b) Non-executive Directors:2 (c) Executive Directors: 3  The Board is responsible for making decisions with respect to important management matters, including the execution of important business activities and other matters as prescribed by law. These decisions are made after deliberating such matters according to the established criteria, assessing risks and giving such matters due consideration. The Board is also responsible for supervising and monitoring the conduct of duties.  Board of Directors Meetings   During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:  Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended 1 Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 5 2 Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali 5 3 Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri 5 4 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 5 5 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 5 6 Mr. Aamir Amin 5 7 Mr. Muhammad Javed 5 8 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 5 9 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 4  The leave of absence was granted to the member for not attending the Board meetings. 23



Audit Committee Meetings  During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:   Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended 1 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 4 2 Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 4 3 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 4 4 Mr. Aamir Amin 4 5 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 2  Human Resource & Remuneration Committee   During the year a meeting of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&R) was held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:  Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended 1 Mr. Muhammad Javed 1 2 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 1 3 Mr. Anis WahabZuberi 1 4 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 1  Directors’ Remuneration Directors Fee is paid in line with Board approval and the Company is in the process of finalizing a formal policy in this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG,2019.  Board Evaluation  During the year, the Board has undertaken a formal process of evaluation of its performance. The overall performance of the Board measured on the defined parameters for the year was satisfactory.  Directors’ Training  The Board ensured the compliance of the requirement of Code of Corporate Governance in respect of Directors’ training program of the Board members.  The Company stands complied with the requirement of the Board Directors Training Program (DTP) certified as prescribed under the sub clause 1 of regulation no. 19 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019. Currently five directors of the Company have certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the Company have the exemption from the requirements of the Directors’ Training Program. The remaining directors shall obtain certification under the DTP in due course of time. 24



Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019  There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance and the company has fully complied with requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. A statement to this effect is annexed with this report.   Pattern of Shareholding   The total number of Company’s shareholders as at June 30, 2023 was 1,321as against 1,302 on June 30, 2022. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2023 and its disclosure is included in this annual report.  The highest and lowest market prices of the Company’s shares during 2022-2023 were as follows:   Highest  August 16, 2022  PKR 86.49 Lowest  March 17, 2023  PKR 57.00  Trading in Shares of the Company by Directors and Executives  During the year ended June 30, 2023, the directors, executives and their spouses and minor children have not traded in the shares of the Company.  Appointment of Auditors  The present Auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim& Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligilble offered themselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended for their re-appointment for the year ending June 30, 2024. The Directors endorse recommendation of Audit Committee.  STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES The Board regularly reviews the company’s strategic direction.  Annual plans and performance targets for business are set and are reviewed by the Board in the light of the company’s overall objectives.  The Board is committed to maintain highest standards of good corporate governance.  As a leading wheel manufacturer, reputation for high ethical standards is critical to business success. Treatment of stakeholders with respect, courtesy and competence, ensuring clear conscientiousness in all decisions and operations and on this basis code of business principles has been developed and acknowledged by each Director and employee of the company.  NBP AND RELATED MATTERS NBP suit for recovery against the Company (BWL) and Privatization Commission (PC) for payment amounting to Rs. 91.25 million it has paid to PC, which the Company does not acknowledge as briefly explained at Note No. 28.1 in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.  25



On March 13, 2023, the Privatization Commission (PC) has filed an appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court (SC) against the order of the Islamabad High Court which had dismissed the appeal of the PC on the grounds of limitation on February 09,2023.The management of the Company has decided to defend this case and engaged a lawyer to file a caveat in the Honorable SC.  FUTURE OUTLOOK The record high interest rates, rising inflation and substantial increase in auto prices due to PKR/US $ depreciation would keep auto sales subdued in FY 24.However, removal of restrictions on opening of LCs for import of CKD kits and auto parts and stability in PKR/US $ parity would cause auto sales to stabilize at current levels as in the FY23.  The management being conscious of the challenges that lie ahead is continuously evolving strategies and adopting measures to meet future challenges and to maintain business growth.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT We take this opportunity to thank our customers and all the stakeholders who reposed their trust and confidence in the company and acknowledge the efforts of the entire BWL team including our staff and workers and look forward to their continued support.   May Allah bless us and help us to achieve success for your company and for the benefit of all stake-holders, and the Country in general. Aameen!      For and on Behalf of the Board     Razak H.M. Bengali       Muhammad Siddique Misri Chief Executive               Director Karachi: August 18, 2023 26
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INVESTOR RELATIONS 36ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGThe 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on September 23, 2023Eligible shareholders are encouraged to participate and vote at General Meetings.REGISTERED OFFICEMain RCD Highway, Hub Chowki,Lasbella, Baluchistan.Telephone # (0853) 363426,363428Fax # (0853) 364025E-mail:bwlfin@cyber.net.pkWebsite:http://www.bwheels.comSHARE REGISTRARTHK Associates (Pvt) LimitedPlot # 32-C 2, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII,Karachi, 75500E-mail:secretariat@thk.com.pkUAN#+92(21) 111-000-322, Direct:+92 35310185Fax#+92 (21) 35310188STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGBaluchistan Wheels Limited is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange LimitedSTOCK CODE/SYMBOLThe stock code/symbol for trading in shares of Baluchistan Wheels Limited is BWHLINVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACTMr. Muhammad Asad SaeedCompany SecretaryTelephone : (+9221) 35650966Fax: (+9221) 35684003DIVIDENDThe Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share (2022: Rs. 4.75/- per share) amounting to Rs. 46.669 million (2022: Rs. 63.337 million) for the year ended June 30, 2023.This is an addition to interim cash dividend of Rs. 4.50/- per share i.e 45.00%, making a total dividend of Rs. 8 per share (80%). (2022:100%)BOOK CLOSURE DATESShare transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration from September 15, 2023 to September 23, 2023 (both days inclusive).DIVIDEND REMITTANCESThe Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on August 18, 2023 has recommended the cash dividend of Rs. 3.50/- per share. If the dividend is approved at the Annual General Meeting willbe paid within the statutory time limit of 10 working days.REPORTING Period Financial Results1st Quarter - September 2022 October 21, 20222nd Quarter/Half Yearly - December 2022 February 16, 20233rd Quarter - March 2023 April 26, 20234th Quarter/Annual - June 2023 August 18, 2023STATUTORY COMPLIANCEDuring the year, the company has complied with all returns/forms and furnished all the relevant particulars as required under the repealed Companies Act, 2017 and allied rules, the Securities andExchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Regulations and the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.INVESTOR GRIEVANCESTo date none of the investors or shareholders has filed any significant complaint against any services provided by the Company to its shareholders. A standard grievance form is also made availabe on thecompany's website : www.bwheels.comWEB PRESENCEThe Company maintains a functional website as per the directions and notifications issued by the SECP. Updated information regarding the company can be accessed at its website, www.bwheels.com . Thewebsite contains the latest financial results of the Company with the Company's profile.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019(CCG) 
 
Name of Company: BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED 
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2023 
 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 
 
1. The total number of directors are 9 as per the following: 

a.  Male:  8 
b. Female: 1 

 
2. The composition of Board is as follows: 
 
Category Names 
  
Independent Directors Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 
 Mr. Aamir Amin 

Mr. Muhammad Javed 
 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 
  
Non-Executive Directors Mr. AnisWahabZuberi(Chairman) 
  
Executive Directors Mr.RazakH.M.Bengali(CEO) 
 Mr.Muhammad Siddique Misri 
 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 
 
Female/ Non-Executive Director Mrs. Saba Nadeem 
 
3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company; 
 
4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
takento disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 
 
5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policiesof the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant 
policies along with their datesof approval or updating in maintained by the Company; 



6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been takenby the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and 
these Regulations; 
 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of 
Act and the Regulationswith respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of 
Board; 
 
8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors 
inaccordance with the Act and these Regulations; 
 
9. Out of the nine, seven Directors have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program 
or are exempted from the requirement of Directors’ Training Program as per the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. However, during the year, No 
Directors’ Training Program was arranged; 
 
10. There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. The Head 
of Internal Auditresigned during the year and the Board approved the appointment of the Head of 
Internal Audit on February 16, 2023. 
 
11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements 
before approval of the Board; 
 
12. The Board has formed the following Committees that are required under the Code. The 
Committees comprise ofmembers as given below:  
 
a) Audit Committee  

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Chairman (Independent Director) 
Mr. AnisWahabZuberi 
Mr. Aamir Amin 
Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 

Member(Non-executive Director) 
Member (Independent Director) 
Member (Independent Director) 

Mrs. Saba Nadeem Member (Non-executive Director) 
  

 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee  

Mr. Muhammad Javeed Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. AnisWahabZuberi Member (Non-executive Director) 
Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani Member (COO/ Executive Director) 
   38



 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 
advised tothe committees for compliance.  
 
14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: 
 

 
15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. The Head of Internal Audit is 
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversantwith the 
policies and procedures of the Company.   
 
16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory ratingunder the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan(ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board ofPakistan, that 
they and all their partners are in compliance with InternationalFederation of Accountants 
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners 
of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal 
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company; 
 
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide otherservices except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement andthe auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard; 
 
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of 
theRegulations have beencomplied with. 
 
 
 
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI 
Chairman  
August 18, 2023 

Meetings Frequency 
Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the 

financial year ended June 30, 2023. 
  
HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting was held during the financial year 

ended June 30, 2023. 
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2023 2022
Note

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETSProperty, plant and equipmentOperating fixed assets 6 942,811                  963,138                  Capital work in progress 7 3,585                      -                          946,396                  963,138                  Long-term loans and advances 8 7,753                      6,138                      Long-term deposits 9 8,579                      7,649                      962,728                  976,925                  
CURRENT ASSETSStores, spares and loose tools 10 36,505                    39,729                    Stock-in-trade 11 649,130                  539,764                  Trade debts 12 110,408                  258,317                  Loans and advances 13 38,408                    41,073                    Deposits and short term prepayments 14 778                         1,433                      Other receivables 15 13,951                    792                         Short-term investments 16 514,904                  523,766                  Sales tax refundable - net 12,049                    -                          Bank balances 18 18,772                    66,034                    1,394,905               1,470,908               

TOTAL ASSETS 2,357,633               2,447,833               
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVESAuthorized share capital 250,000                  250,000                  Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 19 133,343                  133,343                  Revenue reserves 20 1,343,553               1,329,352               Revaluation surplus on property plant and equipment 21 579,075                  579,075                  2,055,971               2,041,770               
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIESLease liabilities 23 13,768                    13,949                    Long-term deposits 24 1,115                      896                          Deferred taxation 25 31,485                    34,972                    46,368                    49,817                    
CURRENT LIABILITIESTrade and other payables 26 187,926                  183,306                  Un-claimed dividend 8,184                      7,087                      Current portion of long-term lease liabilities 23 20,197                    12,365                    Current portion of long-term loan 22 -                          8,790                      Current portion of long-term deposits 24 89                           1,053                      Current portion of government grant -                          91                           Current portion of GIDC payable -                          175                         Sales tax payable - net -                          9,882                      Taxation - net 17 37,395                    130,781                  Provision for warranty 27 1,502                      2,716                      255,294                  356,246                  

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,357,633               2,447,833               
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 28The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE                                                             DIRECTOR                                CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 25,000,000 (2022: 25,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each          (Rupees in thousands)

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2023
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2023 2022
NoteTurnover - net 29 1,675,857        2,778,192        Cost of sales 30 (1,349,925)       (2,166,540)       Gross profit 325,932           611,652           Administrative expenses 31 (120,601)          (116,612)          Selling and distribution expenses 32 (57,325)            (66,798)            Other expenses 33 (41,796)            (51,406)            Other income 34 101,101           52,514             Operating profit 207,311           429,350           Finance cost 35 (5,559)              (3,976)              Profit before taxation 201,752           425,374           Taxation 36 (65,346)            (217,136)          Profit for the year 136,406           208,238           Earnings per share - basic and diluted  (Rupees per share) 37 10.23               15.62               The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            DIRECTOR

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
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2023 2022
NoteProfit for the year 136,406           208,238           

Other comprehensive incomeGain on remeasurement of defined defined benefit plan liability 38.9 1,602               2,942               Deferred tax 25.1 (465)                 (853)                 1,137               2,089               Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 21 -                   40,557             Total comprehensive income for the year 137,543           250,884           The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE                                  DIRECTOR

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
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2023 2022
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESCash generated from operations 40 173,935       199,802       Finance cost paid (5,361)          (4,009)          Income tax paid (156,264)      (41,236)        Employees' benefit paid/received (3,991)          19,294         Leave encashment paid (698)             (2,559)          Long-term loans and advances - net (1,615)          38                Long-term deposits 1,675           41                Net cash flows generated from operating activities 7,681           171,371       
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIESAcquisition of property plant and equipment (5,606)          (25,335)        Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 3,518           1,999           Profit received on saving accounts and treasury bills 84,037         44,320         Short-term investments made during the year (2,087,918)   (2,138,939)   Short-term investments redeemed during the year 2,095,618    2,156,840    Dividend received 1,903           1,578           Net cash flows generated from investing activities 91,552         40,462         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESLong-term financing (8,790)          (21,396)        Lease rentals paid (15,459)        (14,736)        Dividend paid on ordinary shares (122,246)      (128,987)      Net cash used in financing activities (146,495)      (165,119)      Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (47,262)        46,714         Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 66,034         19,320         Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18,772         66,034         The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements.BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            DIRECTOR
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Capital reserves

Revaluation 
surplus on 

property plant 
and equipment

General
reserve

Remeasurement 
(loss) / gain on 
defined benefit 

plan

Unappropriated
profitBalance at July 01, 2021 133,343           538,518               160,000     (3,455)                   1,092,490            1,787,553    1,920,896    Profit for the year -                   -                      -            -                        208,238               208,238       208,238       Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit  liability - net of tax -                   -                      -            2,089                    -                       2,089           2,089           Revaluation surplus on property plant and equipment -                   40,557                 -            -                        -                       40,557         40,557         -                   40,557                 -            2,089                    208,238               250,884       250,883       Transaction with ownersFinal dividend paid on ordinary shares @ Rs. 2 per share -                   -            -                        (130,009)              (130,009)      (130,009)      Balance at June 30, 2022 133,343           579,075               160,000     (1,366)                   1,170,719            1,908,428    2,041,770    Balance at July 01, 2022 133,343           579,075               160,000     (1,366)                   1,170,719            1,908,428    2,041,770    Total comprehensive income for the year Profit for the year -                   -                      -            -                        136,406               136,406       136,406       Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit  liability - net of tax -                   -                      -            1,137                    -                       1,137           1,137           -                   -                      -            1,137                    136,406               137,543       137,543       Transaction with ownersFinal dividend paid on ordinary shares @ Re 4.5 per shares -                   -                      -            -                        (63,338)                (63,338)        (63,338)        -                   -                      -            -                        (26,669)                (26,669)        (26,669)        -                   -                      -            -                        (33,336)                (33,336)        (33,336)        -                   -                      -            -                        (123,343)              (123,343)      (123,343)      Balance at June 30, 2023 133,343           579,075               160,000     (229)                      1,183,782            1,922,628    2,055,971    The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,  2023

Issued, 
subscribed

and paid-up 
capital

Total 
reserves Total equity

Revenue reserves

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Interim dividend for the period ended  December 31, 2022 paid on ordinary shares @ Re 2 per shareSecond interim dividend for the period ended  December 31, 2022 paid on ordinary shares @ Re 2.5 per sharesTotal comprehensive income for the year -----------------------------------------(Rupees in thousands)-----------------------------------------

DIRECTOR
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1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS1.1
2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
3.2 Basis of measurement

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.Baluchistan Wheels Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on June 16, 1980 under CompaniesAct, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is engaged in manufacturing andmarketing of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars and mini commercialvehicles. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.The registered office of the Company is located at the 1st Floor, State Life Building No. 3, Dr.Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The manufacturing facility (plant) of the Company issituated at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International AccountingStandards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; andThese financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reportingstandards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards applicablein Pakistan comprise of :Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSStandards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have beenfollowed. 50



3.3 Use of estimates and judgements:--- allowance for expected credit losses (notes 5.6 and 12)- taxation (notes 5.7,17 and 25)- employee benefit obligations (notes 5.16 and 38)- provision for warranty (notes 5.11 and 27)- lease liabilities (notes 5.3 and 23)- contingencies (notes 5.12 and 28)
3.4 Functional and presentation currency

4

4.1

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standardsrequires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect theapplication of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historicalexperience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions toaccounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing from the period of revision.Judgments and estimates made by management that are significant to the financial statements areas follows:
APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency ofthe primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency).The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees ('Rupees' or 'Rs.'), which is theCompany’s functional and presentation currency.The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June30, 2023. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to theCompany's operations or are not expected to have material impact on the financial statementsother than certain additional disclosures.New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the
year ended June 30, 2023

depreciation method, useful lives, residual values and fair value of property, plant andequipment (notes 5.1 and 6)provision of slow-moving and obselete stores, spares and loose tools and stock-in-trade(notes 5.4, 5.5, 10 and 11) 51



January 01, 2022Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.
4.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effectiveJanuary 01, 2024January 01, 2023Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-currentliabilities with covenants January 01, 2024Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier financearrangementsAmendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lesseesubsequently measures sale and leaseback transactionsAmendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure ofAccounting PoliciesAmendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and ContingentAssets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contractAmendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classificationof liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accountingperiods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are notexpected to have material impact on the Company's financial statements other than certainadditional  disclosures. January 01, 2024January 01, 2023Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplierfinance arrangements January 01, 2024Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in AccountingEstimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates 52



January 01, 2023IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards; andIFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.
5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

a) Operating fixed assets

January 01, 2023Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to therequirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar twoincome taxes Effective date 
(annual periods
beginning on or 

after)Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they areaccounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets andLiabilities arising from a single transactionThe following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the InternationalAccounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities andExchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):Subsequent costs (except freehold land) are included in an asset's carrying amount or recognisedas a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefitsassociated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measuredreliably. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised instatement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are setout below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless statedotherwise.These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,except for freehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Historical cost includes expenditurethat is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item including borrowing costs and exchangedifferences recognised, for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment up to thecommencement of commercial production. The cost of self constructed assets includes the costof materials, direct labor and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to aworking condition for its intended use. 53



b) Capital work-in-progress

5.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

Disposal of assets is recognised when significant risks and rewards incidental to the ownershiphave been transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing theproceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.The assets' residual values, depreciation method and useful lives of each part of property, plantand equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, and adjusted if impact on depreciation issignificant.An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unitexceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset groupthat generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairmentlosses are recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is thehigher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss isrecognised, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revisedcarrying amount over its estimated useful life.Capital work-in-progress (including stores held for capital expenditures) are stated at cost andconsists of expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to operatingfixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes applicableborrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and whenassets are available for use intended by the management.The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting dateto determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the assets'recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.Depreciation on operating fixed assets other than land is provided on a reducing balance method,except for computers which are depreciated on straight line method. Depreciation is charged onaddition from the day the asset is available for use and is continued to be depreciated until it isderecognised. Rates of depreciation, which are disclosed in note 6, are determined to allocate thecost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not insignificant, over its useful life.Freehold land is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at revalued amount,which is the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated impairment, if any. 54



5.3 Leases

a) Right of use assets

b) Lease liability

The right of use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to initially measured lease liabilityadjusted for lease prepayments made at or before the commencement date, initial direct costincurred less any lease incentives received. Right of use asset pertaining to head office is depreciated over the lease term of 3 years usingstraight line method and vehicles over the useful life at the rate of 20% using reducing balancemethod.Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset's carrying amount doesnot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if noimpairment losses had been recognised. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in thestatement of profit or loss.The lease liability is measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future leasepayments over the lease term, discounted with the specific incremental borrowing rate.Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest ratemethod. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in therate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under aresidual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise apurchase, extension or termination option.When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to thecarrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit or loss if thecarrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date ofrecognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the leaseterm. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same basis asthose of operating fixed assets. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by theimpairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability. 55



5.4 Stores and spares

5.5 Stock-in-trade

5.6 Trade debts and other receivables

5.7 Taxation

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequentlymeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The Company is required torecognize allowance for doubtful debts on all financial assets carried at amortised cost inaccordance with  Expected Credit Loss (ECL) requiring to recognize the loss irrespectivewhether the loss event has occurred. Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business lessthe estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw material isdetermined by using the moving average method.Cost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing theinventories to their present location and condition.Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in thestatement of profit or loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in othercomprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is also recognised in othercomprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a periodic basis and provisionis made for slow-moving and obsolete items annually, if required.Work-in-process and finished goods consist of the direct materials costs, fuel and power cost andan appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads including labour cost, depreciation andmaintenance etc.Stores and spares are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value (NRV).Items in transit are valued at cost comprising  invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.Stock-in-transit is valued at purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon uptothe reporting date. 56



a) Current

b) Deferred

c)

5.8 Government Grant

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporarydifferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposesand the amounts used for taxation purposes.Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences anddeferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will beavailable in future years to utilize deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and taxcredits.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset currenttax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on thesame taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilitiesand assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.The Company takes into account decisions taken by the taxation authorities. For instance wherethe Company's view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage, the disputedamounts are shown as contingent liabilities.Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined inaccordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax iscalculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking intoaccount tax credits and tax rebates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, whereconsidered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessmentsframed during the reporting period for such years.The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to theextent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or partof the deferred tax asset to be utilized.Deferred tax is calculated based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted upto the reporting date and are expected to apply to the periods when the differences reverse.The Government Grant is measured upon initial recognition as the difference between fair valueof the loan and loan proceeds. The fair value of the loan is the present value of the loan proceedreceived, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument.Subsequently, the grant is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in line with therecognition of interest expenses the grant is compensating. 57



5.9 Borrowings

5.10 Trade and other payables

5.11 Provisions 

5.12 Contingencies

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are shown as interest and markup isaccrued to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditionalright to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired inthe ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as currentliabilities if payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.Borrowing costs on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for theacquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowingcosts are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are incurred.Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings tothe extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as allowed under IAS 23"Borrowing cost".Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings aresubsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds received (net oftransaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over theperiod of the borrowings using the effective interest method.A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefitswill be required to settle the obligation and amount of that obligation can be measured reliably.Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are reviewed at eachreporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of theconsideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to theCompany and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Exchange gains and losses arising ontransaction in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of therespective liabilities.A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of pastevents, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one ormore uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company hasa present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable thatan outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, orthe amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 58



5.13 Financial instruments

5.13.1 Financial assets

Amortised cost(i)(ii)
Impairment

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions and isnot designated as at fair value through profit or loss:The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assetsmeasured at amortised cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at anamount equal to lifetime ECLs. it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractualcash flows; andits contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to thecontractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets at FVTPLThese assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost incurred is recognised in thestatement of profit or loss. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, arerecognised in statement of profit or loss.On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, fair valuethrough other comprehensive income (FVOCI) equity investment, or fair value through profit orloss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on thebusiness model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flowcharacteristics.The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value throughprofit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortised cost. Theclassification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Managementdetermines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 59



5.13.2 Financial liabilities

5.13.3 Recognition and measurement 

5.13.4 Derecognition

5.14 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of afinancial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximumcontractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortisedcost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that havedetrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to thecontractual provisions of the instrument.Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financialstatements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognisedamounts and the Company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle theliability simultaneously.Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the grosscarrying amount of the financial assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writtenoff when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in itsentirety or a portion thereof. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of theconsideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities aresubsequently measured at fair value and amortised cost, as the case may be. The particularmeasurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated witheach item. The financial assets are de-recognised when the Company loses control of the contractual rightsthat comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognised when they areextinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.60



5.15 Foreign currency translation

5.16 Employees benefits

5.16.1 Staff retirement benefits

a) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity Fund)

b) Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)

5.16.2 Compensated absences

5.16.3 Medical benefits

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency (i.e. 'Rupees') at therates of exchange prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities inforeign currencies are translated into functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing atthe reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.The Company maintains a health insurance policy for its entitled employees and their respectivespouses. The Company contributes premium to the policy annually. Such premium is recognisedas an expense in the statement of profit or loss in the period to which it relates.The Company's employees benefits comprise of provident fund, gratuity scheme, compensatedabsences and medical benefits for eligible employees.Accrual for compensated absences is made to the extent of the value of accrued absences of theeligible employees cadre at the reporting date using their current salary levels as per Company'spolicy. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the managementconsiders that the financial impact is not material.The Company operates an approved funded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent employeeswho have completed the minimum qualifying period of service for entitlement of gratuity. Thecontributions to the scheme are made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation.The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of June 30th, 2023 using Projected Unit Creditmethod. Remeasurement losses and gains are recognised directly to other comprehensive income and arenot reclassified to the statement of profit or loss on subsequent periods. All the past service costsare recognised at the earlier of when the amendments or curtailments occurs and when theCompany has recognised related restructuring or termination benefits.The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for allpermanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equalcontributions are made by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of thebasic salary for executives and 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for non-executives. 61
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5.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Others----- All other revenues are accounted when performance obligations are met.Profit on savings accounts is recognised on effective interest rate method.Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive such payment is established.Scrap sales are recognised on delivery to customers at realized amounts.Sale of goods is recognised when the Company has transferred control of the products to thecustomers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of theproducts. Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferringgoods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due.Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activitiesas described below:Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principleoutstanding and the applicable rate of return.If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability isrecognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when theCompany performs its performance obligations under the contract.Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts. Revenuefrom the sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods passes to customers and thecustomers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the goods.



5.18 Cash and cash equivalents

5.19 Earnings per share

5.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5.21 Related party transactions

5.22 Segment reporting

Transactions with related parties are based at agreed rates at normal commercial rates on thesame terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinaryshareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding duringthe year.An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities fromwhich it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate totransactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only onereportable segment i.e manufacturing and marketing of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses,tractors, cars and mini commercial vehicles.For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances.Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared and approved by theCompany’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Appropriations of profit are reflected inthe statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are approved. 63
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6 OPERATING FIXED ASSETSThe following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Year ended June 30, 2023
Net carrying value basisOpening net book value (NBV) 581,634          40,229            286,265               7,054             1,146              12,722            2,904              375                 2                     30,807        -            963,138          Additions (at cost) -                  -                  3,145                   -                 175                 -                  1,447              73                   -                  14,766        9,110         28,716            Disposals (NBV) -                  -                  -                      -                 -                  (3,414)             (100)                -                  -                  -              -            (3,514)             Transfer from right of use asset -                  -                  -                      -                 -                  4,361              -                  -                  -                  (4,361)         -            -                  Depreciation charge -                  (2,012)             (30,006)               (705)               (120)                (1,854)             (1,224)             (26)                  -                  (6,546)         (3,036)       (45,529)           Closing net book value 581,634          38,217            259,404               6,349             1,201              11,815            3,027              422                 2                     34,666        6,074         942,811          
Gross carrying value basisCost 581,634          105,813          1,070,647            31,486           4,945              31,407            15,077            3,542              42                   56,666        18,569       1,919,828       Accumulated depreciation -                  (67,596)           (811,243)             (25,137)          (3,744)             (19,592)           (12,050)           (3,120)             (40)                  (22,000)       (12,495)     (977,017)         Net book value 581,634          38,217            259,404               6,349             1,201              11,815            3,027              422                 2                     34,666        6,074         942,811          
Year ended June 30, 2022
Net carrying value basisOpening net book value (NBV) 541,077          42,346            299,041               7,838             1,297              13,566            2,604              186                 2                     34,840        3,153         945,950          Additions (at cost) (refer note 6.2) -                  -                  20,819                 -                 67                   2,753              1,419              277                 -                  3,600          -            28,935            Disposals (NBV) -                  -                  (552)                    -                 (87)                  (989)                (59)                  -                  -                  -              -            (1,687)             Revaluation (refer note 6.5 & 20) 40,557            -                  -                      -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -              -            40,557            Depreciation charge -                  (2,117)             (33,043)               (784)               (131)                (2,608)             (1,060)             (88)                  -                  (7,633)         (3,153)       (50,617)           Closing net book value 581,634          40,229            286,265               7,054             1,146              12,722            2,904              375                 2                     30,807        -            963,138          
Gross carrying value basisCost 581,634          105,813          1,067,502            31,486           4,770              27,046            13,630            3,469              42                   41,900        9,459         1,886,751       Accumulated depreciation -                  (65,584)           (781,237)             (24,432)          (3,624)             (14,324)           (10,726)           (3,094)             (40)                  (11,093)       (9,459)       (923,613)         Net book value 581,634          40,229            286,265               7,054             1,146              12,722            2,904              375                 2                     30,807        -            963,138          
Depreciation rate (% per annum) -                  5 to 10 10 to 20 10                  10                   20 33                   33                   10                   20               33              6.1
 

2023 2022
Note (Rupees in thousands)6.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:Cost of sales 30 36,066                 40,710           Selling and distribution expenses 32 134                      9,845             Administrative expenses 31 9,329                   62                  45,529                 50,617           6.3 The cost of fully depreciated assets as at June 30, 2023 is Rs. 75.530 million (2022: Rs. 79.317 million).This freehold land of 23.593 acre (2022: 23.593 acre)  is located at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan. Total

(Rupees in thousands)

Freehold land 
(note 6.1)           

Buildings on 
freehold land

Plant and 
machinery

Electrical 
installations

Furniture
 and fixtures Library books

Right of use assets

Vehicles Head office 
premises

Vehicles       Office 
equipments Computers  Description



6.4 These valuations fall under level 2 hierarchies which have been explained in note 6.4.2.6.4.16.4.2
6.4.2 Non financial asset fair valuation

6.5 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observablefor the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date(unobservable inputs).Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in anorderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 581,634              The fair market value and the forced sales value of the revalued land is Rs. 581.634 million and465.307 million respectively.Valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of leasehold land and the significantunobservable inputs used in the valuation are as follows:The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurements are as follows: Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not availablefor distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.Details of the latest revaluation exercises carried out by the external valuers based on whichrevaluation surplus has been recorded in these financial statements are as follows:
Revaluation 

date
Name of 
external 
valuer

Carrying values 
as at June 30, 

2023
--------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------

Written down 
value before 
revaluationFairwater Property Valuers & Surveyors (Private) LimitedLeasehold land June 30, 2022 2,559                     581,634              Revalued 

amount 
as at revaluation 
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Freehold land

2023 2022
Note

7 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS This comprises of:Plant and machinery 7.1 3,585             -                    

7.1 Movement of carrying amount of plant and machineryOpening balance -                 4,100             Additions (at cost) 3,585             15,666           Transferred to operating fixed assets -                 (19,766)          Closing balance 3,585             -                 
8 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCESLoans - securedEmployees 8.1 1,996             2,982             Executives 8.1 & 8.2 4,388             3,068             6,384             6,050             Current maturity 13 (1,747)            (1,760)            4,637             4,290             Advances - securedEmployees 19,242           21,978           Executives 8.2 6,085             6,804             25,327           28,782           Current maturity 13 (22,211)          (26,934)          3,116             1,848             7,753             6,138             The estimated fair value of land would increase / decrease in line with the selling prices forproperty of same nature in the immediate neighbourhood and adjoining areas.The fair value of freehold land was determined by obtaining market values of the properties andconsidering its size, nature and location, as well as the trend in the real estate and property sector.All relevant factors affecting the saleability of the asset, availability of the buyers and theassessment of its real value under prevailing economic conditions were accounted for. The fairvalue of the land was assessed based on information available in current real estate market andhas been categorized as level 2.

(Rupees in thousands)
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8.18.2
2023 2022

Note
9 LONG-TERM DEPOSITSUnsecured - considered goodTrade deposits               3,761               4,019 Lease deposits               4,818               3,630               8,579               7,649 
10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLSStores 8,126             7,959             Spare parts 89,007           92,444           Loose tools 2,216             1,936             99,349           102,339         (62,844)          (62,610)          36,505           39,729           10.1 Provision for slow-moving stores and sparesOpening balance 62,610           60,293           Provision during the year 30 234                2,317             Closing balance 62,844           62,610           
11 STOCK-IN-TRADERaw materials 192,742         272,866         Work-in-process 175,548         177,745         Finished goods 176,174         84,855           Scrap stock 2,674             8,316             547,138         543,782         Stock in transit 113,668         -                 660,805         543,782         Provision for slow-moving stock-in-trade 11.1 (11,676)          (4,018)            649,130         539,764         The maximum aggregate amount due from executives and employees at the end of any monthduring the year was Rs. 10.474 million (2022: Rs. 7.215 million).This represents loans given to executives and employees as per employment terms. These arerecoverable in equal monthly installments over a period of four years. These loans are securedagainst the retirement benefits of employees and does not carry any interest or mark-up.

(Rupees in thousands)Provision for slow-moving stores and spares 67



12 TRADE DEBTSUnsecured - considered goodDue from associated undertakings 12.1 -                 1,984             Others 110,408         256,333         110,408         258,317         12.1
13 LOANS AND ADVANCESCurrent maturity of long-term loans 8               1,747 1,760             AdvancesCurrent maturity of long-term advances 8 22,211           26,934           for expenses 13.1 1,157             490                13,293           11,889           36,661           39,313           38,408           41,073           13.1
14 DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTSDepositsTrade deposits -                 600                Lease deposits 470                420                470                1,020             Prepayments 308                413                778                1,433             This includes advances provided to employees to meet business expenses. These advances areinterest free.This comprises of amount receivable from Gandhara Nissan Limited, a related party. However,the said relationship has been ceased from the month of May, 2022 due to no more existence ofcommon directorship.to suppliers 68



15 OTHER RECEIVABLES Markup on treasury bills 13,493           334                Accrued markup on KE Sukuks 127                -                 Deposit Accounts 32                  -                 Insurance claim 299                -                 Others -                 458                13,951           792                
16 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss:Listed equity securities 16.1 & 16.2 2,609               3,770              2,609               3,770              
At amortised costTreasury bills 507,295           519,996          Sukuks 5,000               -                 514,904           523,766          

16.1 Listed equity securitiesInvestment in equity securities of listed companies are as follows:Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 923                  1,947              Fauji Cement Company Limited 329                  354                 Nishat Mills Limited 284                  370                 Attock Refinery Limited 1,073               1,099              2,609               3,770              16.2 Market value 2,609               3,770              Carrying value (3,770)              (6,102)            (1,161)              (2,332)            20236,2502023
Number of shares Company name

202210,00025,0005,00028,1255,00010,000 6,250 2022Net unrealised loss on remeasurement of investments recognised as financial assets at fair valuethrough profit or loss: 69
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17 TAXATION - NETAdvance income tax 30,300 85,930Provision for taxation 36 (67,695) (216,711)(37,395) (130,781)
18 Current accounts 12,004 15,937Saving accounts 18.1 6,768 50,09718,772 66,03418.1
19 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITALFully paid in cash 92,760 92,76040,583 40,583133,343 133,34319.1
20 RESERVES

Revenue reservesGeneral reserve 160,000 160,000Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan- net (229) (1,366)Un-appropriated profit 1,183,782 1,170,7181,343,553 1,329,3522023 20224,058,250The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The holdersof shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to onevote per share at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to theCompany's residual assets.Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each

(Rupees in thousands)

BANK BALANCES - (Local Currency)
2022

These carry profits at the rates ranging from 16% to 20.50% (2022: 7.75% to 13%) per annum.13,334,250 9,276,0004,058,25013,334,250 Issued as fully paid bonus shares20239,276,000



Balance as the beginning of the year             579,075           538,518 Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation charged / disposals during the year, net of deferred tax                      -                       -   Related deferred tax liabilityRevaluation surplus arising during the year                      -               40,557                      -               40,557             579,075           579,075 
22 LONG-TERM LOANNon-current maturity -                   -                 Current maturity -                   8,790              -                   8,790              
23 LEASE LIABILITIESLease liabilities 33,965             26,314           Current portion (20,197)            (12,365)          23.1 13,768             13,949           
23.1 Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:

Vehicles Head office 
premises Total Vehicles Head office 

premises Total

(Rupees in thousands) (Rupees in thousands)Opening balance 22,953              -                    22,953              34,315              3,135                37,450              Additions 14,000              9,110                23,110              3,600                -                    3,600                Accretion of interest 6,773                2,020                8,793                2,748                3,098                5,846                20,773              11,130              31,903              6,348                6,233                9,446                Payments (16,032)             (4,859)               (20,891)             (17,710)             (6,233)               (23,943)             Closing balance 27,694              6,271                33,965              22,953              -                    22,953              Current maturity (17,186)             (3,011)               (20,197)             (9,004)               -                    (9,004)               10,508              3,260                13,768              13,949              -                    13,949              2023 2022

71
21 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTThis represents revaluation surplus relating to freehold land (notes 6.4 and 6.5).



Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow
Minimum lease 

payment Present Value Minimum lease 
payment Present Value

                   ------------------------(Rs. in '000)-----------------------Within one year 24,424              20,197              14,474              12,365              After one year but not more than five year 16,314              13,768              14,588              13,949              40,738              33,965              29,062              26,314              Amount representing finance charges (6,773)               -                    (2,748)               -                    Present value of minimum lease payments 33,965              33,965              26,314              26,314              Current portion (20,197)             (20,197)             (12,365)             (12,365)             13,768              13,768              13,949              13,949              2023 202223.223.323.423.5
2023 2022

Note
24 LONG TERM DEPOSITSDeposits from employees                 1,204               1,949 Current maturity                    (89)             (1,053)24.1                 1,115                  896 24.1 Represents interest-free deposits received from employees on account of executive cars andgenerator scheme and are adjustable within the period of five and three years respectively againstrespective assets.Rentals are payable in equal monthly installments whereas repairs and insurance costs are borneby the Company. These are secured against demand promissory notes and title documents of thevehicles.The Company has entered into various finance lease agreements with Bank Al Habib Limited inrespect of vehicles. The rate of interest used as the discounting factor ranges between 12.2% to23% per annum (2022: 12.2% to 13.5% per annum).The Company is bound by certain covenants which includes but are not limited to payment ofcertain taxes and to exercise reasonable care.

(Rupees in thousands)

The Company has entered in to an rental agreement for head office premises. The rental period is more than 3 years. 72
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25 DEFERRED TAXATIONDeferred taxation 25.1 31,485             34,972           25.1 The net balance for deferred taxation is in respect offollowing temporary differences:Deferred tax liabilitiesAccelerated tax depreciation allowance 55,942             54,718           Defined benefit plan 465                  853                Right-of-use assets 8,657               8,934             65,064             64,505           Deferred tax assetsProvisions 23,729             21,902           Lease liabilities 9,850               7,631             (33,579)            (29,533)          31,485             34,972           
26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLESCreditors 16,085             23,485           Accrued liabilities 100,800           113,028         Contract liabilities 26.1 25,720             6,735             Gratuity fund 38 2,188               -                 Provident fund 314                  -                 Retention money 455                  455                Compensated absences 5,800               6,086             Workers' Profit Participation Fund 26.2 3,120               4,845             Workers' Welfare Fund 32,636             28,030           Security deposits 388                  388                Mark-up on running finance 200                  2                    Others 220                  252                187,926           183,306         26.1 This represents advance received from various customers. Revenue recognised during the yearfrom amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounted to Rs. 2.254million (2022: Rs. 1.335 million).



27 PROVISION FOR WARRANTYOpening balance 2,716               1,889             (Reversal of Provision)/Provision made during the year (1,214)              827                Closing balance 1,502               2,716             
28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

28.1 Contingencies28.1.128.1.228.1.3 On April 08, 2004, National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) has made a payment to the PrivatisationCommission amounting to Rs. 91.25 million and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of Sindhfor the recovery of the same from the Company which was subsequently transferred due toadministrative reasons to the Banking Court No. III at Karachi. On January 06, 2022, theHonorable Banking Court dismissed the Suit # 53 of 2017 in Company's favour, but the NBP hasfiled 1st Appeal # 34 of 2022 in the Honourable High Court of Sindh against this order and theappeal is pending till date. The management, based on the advice of its legal advisor, is of theopinion that the case will be decided in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision hasbeen made in these financial statements.On August 06, 2001, the Company filed suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh atKarachi, against NBP for satisfaction of Charge on Asset which was created in anticipation of aprospective loan / finance to be provided by NBP to the Company. As the proposed loan / financehad not been obtained from NBP by the Company, the charge should have been redeemed byNBP. Currently, the matter is at the state of evidence of the parties. The management, based onthe advice of legal advisor, is of the view that no financial implications will arise to the Companyas a result of this suit and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in thesefinancial statements.On January 25, 2018, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended theassessment and issued order under section 122 (5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, (ITO) 2001, forthe tax year 2015, and created arbitrary tax demand of Rs. 35.356 million. Being aggrieved withthe order of the concerned ACIR, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner InlandRevenue Appeals - I [CIR (A)] on which the concerned CIR (A) through its order under section129 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, deleted certain additions and remanded back the case to theconcerned ACIR on account of certain additions. The ACIR filed an appeal before AppellateTribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on the issued which were deleted by the CIR (A) which ispending adjudication.The management of the company, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has maintained/ retaineda provision amounting of Rs. 17.678 million on prudent basis. 74
2023 2022

Note (Rupees in thousands)



28.1.428.1.528.1.628.1.7 The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has maintained/retained a provision ofRs. 28.392 million on prudent basis.On March 13, 2023, the Privatization Commission (PC) has filed an appeal in the HonorableSupreme Court (SC) against the order of the Islamabad High Court which had dismissed theappeal of the PC on the grounds of limitation on February 09, 2023. The management of theCompany has decided to defend this case and engaged a lawyer to file a caveat in the HonorableSC.On March 15, 2021, the DCIR amended the assessment and issued order under section 122(5A) ofthe Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, demanded Rs. 417.996 million againstwhich the Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) who has passed an appellate order undersection 129(1) whereby set aside / delete the whole demand except for addition in difference instock between the Income tax return and sales tax return amounting to Rs. 72.088 million. againstwhich the Company filed an appeal before ATIRwhich is pending adjudication. On November 28,2022, the DCIR passed an order under section 122(4) to give effect under section 124 of theIncome Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, whereby the learned DCIR made addition inthe income amounting to Rs. 19,204 million on amount of purchase due to non-deduction of taxunder section 153(1)(a) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 against which the company filed anappeal before CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has maintained a provision of Rs. 32,718million on prudent basis.On September 27, 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) amended the assessmentand issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2017,reducing tax refunds for the said tax year by Rs. 28.39 million. Being aggrieved, the Companyfiled and appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) (CIRA), who maintained thedemand of DCIR through appellate order dated January 15, 2019. The Company filed an appealbefore Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication.On May 31, 2023, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued order under section 122(5A) ofthe Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2019, and created tax demand of Rs. 6.203million on various issues. Being aggrieved with the order of the concerned ACIR, the Companyfiled an appeal before the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has not made any provision in respect of above contingency. 75
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2023 2022

28.2 CommitmentsOutstanding letters of guarantee           4,512           4,512 Outstanding letters of credit - raw material           6,982       248,886 
29 TURNOVER - NETLocal sales 29.1 1,980,185  3,257,390    Sales return (5,195)        (5,278)          Sales tax (302,062)    (473,920)    (307,257)    (479,198)    1,672,928  2,778,192    Export Sales 2,929         -             1,675,858  2,778,192  29.1 Local sales include scrap sales of Rs. 95.138 million (2022: Rs.152.037 million).
30 COST OF SALESMaterials consumed 30.1 1,024,902  1,786,152  Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.2 136,333     190,027     Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 75,444       89,620       Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 29,520       37,767       Depreciation on right-of-use assets 6.2 6,546         2,943         52,713       69,130       61,618       57,264       22,324       19,391       8,466         4,656         3,778         3,185         10.1 234            2,317         5,768         3,620         11.1 7,658         2,052         2,784         2,240         533            519            65              98              52              57              73              67              236            164            1,439,047  2,271,269  177,745     115,778     (175,548)    (177,745)    2,197         (61,967)      1,441,244  2,209,302  84,855       42,093       (176,174)    (84,855)      (91,318)      (42,762)      1,349,925  2,166,540  Cost of goods manufacturedFinished goods  Opening stock-in-trade  Closing stock stock-in-tradeManufacturing costWork-in-Process  Opening stock  Closing stockEnteratinmentTelphone and postageTravelling and conveyanceComputer expensesSubscriptionOthersStaff transportationRepairs and maintenanceInsuranceProvision for slow moving stores and sparesVehicle running expensesProvsion for slow moving stock-in trade (Rupees in thousands)Fuel and powerOutsourced job contractor
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30.1 Material consumedOpening stock-in-tradeRaw material and components 119,216           103,134           Scrap 8,316               156                  127,532           103,290           Purchases made during the year 1,092,487        1,810,394        1,220,019        1,913,684        Closing stock-in-tradeRaw material and components (192,743)         (119,216)          Scrap (2,374)             (8,316)              (195,117)         (127,532)          1,024,902        1,786,152        30.2 Bonus 25,801             51,860             Medical 5,073               4,428               Gratuity fund 4,050               2,466               Provident fund 3,793               3,328               Accrual for compensated absences -                  1,461               38,717             63,543             
31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESSalaries and other benefits 31.1 62,786             65,231             Outsourced service expenses 8,342               8,090               Vehicle running expenses 13,991             10,796             Corporate expenses 5,024               4,346               Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 6,293               5,155               Depreciation on right-of-use assets 6.2 3,036               4,690               Entertainment 4,162               3,633               Utilities 3,936               4,075               Legal and professional charges 2,810               2,225               Auditor's remuneration 31.2 1,365               1,035               Insurance 1,249               1,023               Telephone and postage 726                  675                  Staff transportation 881                  766                  Repairs and maintenance 1,489               823                  General stores supplies 1,645               1,734               Printing, stationery and periodicals 390                  213                  Travelling and conveyance 449                  334                  Donation and charities 519                  -                   Others 1,508               1,769               120,601           116,612           Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 38.717 million (2022: Rs. 63.543 million) inrespect of the following staff employment benefits. 2023 2022

Note (Rupees in thousands)



Note
31.2 Auditor's remunerationStatutory audit fee 765                  765                  Half yearly review 160                  160                  Code of Corporate Governance 110                  70                    Out of pocket expenses 330                  40                    1,365               1,035               
32 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSESSalaries and other benefits 32.1 19,635             19,220             Outsourced service expenses 2,832               2,629               Entertainment 1,769               1,578               Vehicle running expenses 2,235               1,350               Utilities 793                  899                  Insurance 554                  337                  Export related expenses 81                    -                   Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 134                  62                    Provision for warranty -                  827                  Others 351                  371                  Outward freight 28,942             39,525             57,325             66,798             (Rupees in thousands)

7831.1 Bonus 4,927               13,829             Medical 1,250               2,611               Gratuity fund 1,080               658                  Provident fund 2,514               2,097               Accrual for compensated absences -                  2,087               9,771               21,282             Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 9.771 million (2022: Rs. 21.282 million) inrespect of the following staff employment benefits. 2023 2022
Note (Rupees in thousands)



32.1 Bonus 1,617               3,457               Medical 347                  2,283               Gratuity fund 270                  164                  Provident fund 818                  739                  Accrual for compensated absences -                  29                    3,052               6,672               
33 OTHER EXPENSESWorkers' Profit Participation Fund 26.2 12,120             22,845             Workers' Welfare Fund 4,605               8,681               1,161               2,332               Exchange loss-net 23,910             17,548             41,796             51,406             Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 3.052 million (2022: Rs. 6.672 million) inrespect of the following staff employment benefits.Unrealised loss on change in fair value of listed equity securities 79
34 OTHER INCOMEIncome from financial assetsProfit on savings accounts 7,567               5,269               Profit on treasury bills 89,660             32,437             Dividend income 34.1 153                  65                    Realised gain on sale of investments 1,750               104                  99,130             37,875             Income from non-financial assetsGain on sale of operating fixed assets - net 5                      312                  Liability no longer payable 607                  -                   Sale of wastage material - net -                  10,514             Amortization of Government grant  91                    1,278               Reversal of warranty provision 1,214               Others 54                    2,535               1,971               14,639             101,101           52,514             2023 2022

Note (Rupees in thousands)



34.1
35 FINANCE COST Markup on:Running finance 227                  11                    Long-term loan 40                    687                  Workers' Profit Participation Fund 26.2 148                  28                    415                  726                  Bank charges and commission 310                  181                  Finance charges on leases 4,834               3,069               5,559               3,976               
36 TAXATIONFor the yearCurrent 36.1 67,033             138,306                 Prior 662                  78,405             Deferred (2,349)             425                  65,346             217,136           36.1
37 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTEDThe earnings per share as required under IAS 33: "Earnings per share" is given below:

2023 2022Profit for the year (Rupees in '000') 136,406           208,238           13,334             13,334             10.23               15.62               There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.This amount represents dividend income from Honda Atlas Car Pakistan Limited, AttockRefinery Limited and Nishat Mills Limited.The Company computes tax provisions based on the generally accepted interpretations of thetax laws to ensure that sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. Accordingly,the Company has assessed the sufficiency of the tax provisions.Earnings per share attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousands)

(Rupee per share)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousands) 80
2023 2022

Note (Rupees in thousands)
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38 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

38.1 General description

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greaterthan what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, thebenefit amount would also increase proportionately.Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meetthe liabilities. Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumedwithdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service andthe entitled benefits of the beneficiary.
Asset volatility - Most assets are invested in risk free investments i.e. Government Bonds /Treasury bills. However, investments in equity instruments is subject to adverse fluctuations asa result of change in the market price.Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set withreference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase planliabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’bond holdings.Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund asadvised by the Actuary.This scheme provides terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who attain theminimum qualifying period at varying percentages of last drawn basic salary. The percentagedepends on the number of service years with the Company. Annual charge is based on actuarialvaluation carried out as at June 30, 2023 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumedmortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution ison the higher side.The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:
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38.2 Principal actuarial assumptionsFollowing are a few important actuarial assumptions used in  the valuation:

2023 2022
%age %ageDiscount rate 16.25 13.25Expected rate of increase in salary 15.25 12.25

38.3 Present value of defined benefit obligation 103,043           90,140             Fair value of plan assets (100,855)         (90,598)            Closing net asset 2,188               (458)                 Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan

2023 2022
Note

38.4 Opening net asset (458)                (23,037)            Charge for the year 38.8 4,449               3,286               Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive income 38.9 (1,602)             (2,942)              Contribution made during the year (200)                22,236             Closing net asset 26&15 2,189               (458)                 
38.5 Fair value of plan assets at year endTreasury Bills 68,624 56,968Mutual Funds 22,381 23,267Equity Investments 9,557 10,227Cash at banks 293 136100,855           90,598             Movement of the liability recognised in the 

statement of financial position

(Rupees in thousands)



38.6 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations Opening present value of defined benefit obligations 90,140             87,138Current service cost for the year 4,523               4,478Interest cost for the year 11,758             8,674Benefits paid during the year (2,796)             (802)Remeasurement gain on obligation (582)                (9,348)Closing present value of defined benefit obligations 103,043           90,140             
38.7 Movement in fair value of plan assets Opening fair value of plan assets 90,598 110,176Remeasurement on plan assets 1,020 (6,406)Contributions during the year 200 (22,236)Benefits paid during the year (2,796) (802)Expected return on plan assets 11,832 9,866Closing fair value of plan assets 100,854           90,598             
38.8 Charge for the yearCurrent service cost 4,523               4,478               Interest cost (74)                  (1,192)              Charge for the year 4,449               3,286               
38.9 Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive income Experience adjustments (582)                (9,348)              (582)                (9,348)              Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (1,020)             6,406               (1,602)             (2,942)              
38.10 Sensitivity analysisThe impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:Discount rate            106,465             100,022 Salary increase            106,469               99,968 38.11 Increase in 

assumptionThe expected contribution to the fund for the year ending June 30, 2024 is estimated to be Rs.65.263 million. Decrease in 
assumption

(Rupees in thousands)
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2023 2022

Note (Rupees in thousands)



39 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

2023 2022
Note

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONSProfit before taxation 201,752           425,374           Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 35,947             39,831             Depreciation on right-of-use assets 6.2 9,582               10,786             Amortization of Government grant 34 (91)                  (1,278)              Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 34 (5)                    (312)                 Finance cost 35 5,559               3,976               Provision for slow-moving stores and spares 10.1 234                  2,317               Reversal of provision for slow-moving stock in trade 11.1 7,658               2,052               Allowance for expected credit losses -                  -                   Accrual for compensated absences 412                  1,400               (Reversal for provision) / provision of warrantyclaims and adjustment claims 27 (1,214)             827                  Provision for employee defined benefit obligations 7,004               3,286               Profit on savings accounts and treasury bills 34 (98,977)           (37,810)            Unrealized loss on change in fair value of listed equity securities 1,161               2,332               Dividend income (1,903)             (1,578)              167,120           451,203           Working capital changes 40.1 6,815               (251,401)          173,935           199,802           (Rupees in thousands)

The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanentemployees. The Fund is maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments anddistribution of income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Company. 84
40.1 Changes in working capital (Increase) / decrease in current assets:Stores, spares and loose tools 2,991               (4,242)              Stock-in-trade (117,023)         (198,145)          Trade debts 147,909           6,308               Loans and advances 2,665               (9,069)              Trade deposits and short term prepayments 655                  (877)                 Other receivables (13,160)           -                   Sales tax refundable (12,049)           595                  11,988             (205,431)          Increase in current liabilities:Trade and other payables  4,709               (55,852)            Sales tax payable (9,882)             9,882               6,815               (251,401)          



41 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVESa)
Chief  Chief

Executive Executive7,237       14,052  10,348       31,637    6,579       12,776  6,264         25,619    3,257       6,324    4,657         14,238    2,961       5,748    2,819         11,528    2,640       5,233    5,034         12,907    1,206       2,342    2,050         5,598      2,412       4,684    4,128         11,224    4,934       9,582    1,389         15,905    643          1,500    237            2,380      1,612       2,989    195            4,796      864          1,747    1,476         4,087      650          1,313    798            2,761      1,387       4,897    76              6,360      1,890       760       68              2,718      Total 18,440     38,437  25,956       82,833    19,832     35,510  13,583       68,925    Number of persons 1              2           5                8             1              2           3                6             b)c) (Rupees in thousands)Managerial remunerationHouse rentAggregate amount charged in the financial statements against fee for attending meetings to six non-executive directors was Rs. 2.860million (2022: Rs. 2.250 million).MedicalLeave fare assistanceStaff retirement benefitsUtilitiesBonusThe chief executive, directors and certain executives are also provided with free use of the Company's maintained cars, household itemsand other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors andExecutives of the Company is as follows:
2023 2022

Director Executives Executives TotalTotal Director

85



42 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

2023 2022
Nature of transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation NoteSale of goodsGandhara Nissan Limited  (42.3) Associated company Common Director -                37,638           Dividend on ordinary sharesDirectors and others Personnel Key management personnel 56,846           32,272           Long term loan givenExecutives Personnel Key management personnel 4,388             2,465             AdvancesExecutives Personnel Key management personnel 6,085             4,750             Sale of vehicles / equipmentsExecutives Personnel Key management personnel 10,403           561                

42.1 Year end balances 2023 2022Receivable from a related party                    -                 1,984 Long term loan 8.1 & 8.2              4,388               3,068 Advances 8.2              6,085               6,804            10,473             11,856 42.242.3 The related parties of the Company comprise directors, key management personnel retirement benefit plans and company with common directorship.Transactions with related parties in the financial statements are as follows:
(Rupees in thousands)

(Rupees in thousands)All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions except certain executives are entitled to obtain cars atCompany's car executive scheme.The Ghandara Nissan Limited (GHNL) was a related party of the Company due to common directorship. The election of directors was held on May 25th,2022, based on election, the said relationship has ceased to exist during the reporting period. 86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGFROM TO647 1 - 100 25,136 0.19                           444 101 - 500 124,871 0.94                           94 501 - 1000 72,012 0.54                           94 1,001 - 5000 210,056 1.58                           15 5001 - 10000 107,595 0.81                           3 10001 - 15000 35,560 0.27                           3 15001 - 20000 53,215 0.40                           2 20001 - 25000 43,300 0.32                           1 25001 - 30000 29,500 0.22                           1 50001 - 55000 55,000 0.41                           1 125001 - 130000 129,400 0.97                           1 145001 - 150000 145,562 1.09                           1 150001 - 155000 151,500 1.14                           1 285001 - 290000 287,500 2.16                           1 300001 - 305000 300,500 2.25                           1 325001 - 330000 328,000 2.46                           1 340001 - 345000 341,693 2.56                           1 435001 - 440000 437,201 3.28                           1 480001 - 485000 482,083 3.62                           1 640001 - 645000 645,000 4.84                           1 695001 - 700000 700,000 5.25                           1 795001 - 800000 800,000 6.00                           1 995001 - 1000000 1,000,000 7.50                           1 1280001 - 1285000 1,282,825 9.62                           1 1325001 - 1330000 1,328,360 9.96                           1 1570001 - 1575000 1,571,971 11.79                        1 2645001 - 2650000 2,646,410 19.85                        1,321 13,334,250 100Number of Shareholders Number of Shares Held Percentage(%)11 6,147,507 46.103 329,468 2.471 341,693 2.564 1,483,878 11.137 5,905 0.0419 1,787,494 13.411,113 2,886,908 21.65163 351,397 2.641,321 13,334,250 100.00--- FOREIGNFOREIGN COMPANIESMODARABAS & MUTUAL FUNDCategories of ShareholdersSPONSORS, DIRECTORS, THEIR SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDRENOTHERSBANK,DFI & NBFI INSURANCE COMPANIESGENERAL PUBLIC--- LOCAL NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE (%)AS AT JUNE 30, 2023NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDING RANGE 96



97



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING    
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 43rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
shareholders of Baluchistan Wheels Limited will be held on Saturday, September 23, 2023 at 
11:30 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company, Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, District Lasbella, Baluchistan, to transact the following business :- 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm the minutes of the 42nd Annual General Meeting held on October 01, 2022. 
2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the 

Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ 
Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report. 

3. To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of Rs.3.50 (35%) per share for
the year ended June 30, 2023 as recommended by the Board of Directors. This is in 
addition to interim dividends already paid at Rs. 4.50 (45%) per share. 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2024 and fix 
their remuneration. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
Ordinary Resolution 5. To sought approval of members to circulate annual audited financial statements through QR enabled Code and Weblink instead of transmitting the same in the form of CD / DVD / USB in pursuance of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)  S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023.  

“Resolved that as notified by the SECP via S.R.O  NO. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023 transmission of annual audited financial statements to its members through QR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the same in the form of CD / DVD / USB, be and is hereby ratified and approved for future.”  
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
6. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman. 
 

 
        BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
             
 
 
                                                                                                      Muhammad Asad Saeed                   
                             Company Secretary 
Karachi: September 02, 2023   
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NOTES: 
 
1.  Closure of Share Transfer Books: 

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from September 15, 2023 to 
September 23, 2023 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Shares 
Department of M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Limited, Plot No: 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 
2, DHA, Phase-VII, Karachi, Pakistan, by the close of business on September 14, 2023, 
will be considered in time to determine the above mentioned entitlement. 

 
2. For Attending the Meeting: 

i. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holder and / or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC, or original  
passport at the time of attending the meeting. 

ii. Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their 
   particulars, ID number and account number in Central Depository System (CDS). 
 

3. Proxy: 
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint any other 
member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received at the Head Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours 
before the time of holding the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed with the Notice of 
Meeting being sent to the members. 
 

4. Submission of CNIC/NTN(Mandatory): 
Individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC to the 
Company/Share Registrar, are once again requested to send their CNIC(Copy) at the earliest 
directly to Company’s Share Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Limited. Corporate
Entities also requested to provide their NTN. Please also give Folio with the copy of 
CNIC/NTN detail.  
 

5. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory): 
a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act,2017 and 

Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017, every listed company is required 
to ensure that the cash dividends to its shareholders shall be paid through electronic mode 
only  directly into their bank accounts designated by the entitled shareholders instead of 
issuing physical dividend warrants. Therefore, shareholders are requested to provide the 
details of their Bank mandate specifying: (i) Title of account, (ii) Account number (iii) IBAN 
number (iv) Bank name and (v) Branch name, code and address to the Company Share 
Registrar. Those share- holders who hold shares with participants / Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the same to their concerned participant 
/ CDC. 

b. Please note that as per Section 243 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed Companies are 
entitled to withhold payment of dividend, if necessary information is not provided by the 
shareholders. 

c. For the convenience of shareholders, e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on Company's
website http:// www.bwheels.com 
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6. Un-claimed/Un-paid Dividends: 
 The shareholders who, by any reasons, could not claim their dividends are advised to contact 
  our Share Registrar, M/s THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd to collect /inquire about their 
 unclaimed/unpaid dividends. 
 
7.  Deposit of Physical Shares into Central Depository: 

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, listed companies are required to replace existing 
physical shares issued by them into book-entry form. Further, SECP vide its letter dated March 26, 
2021 has advised to comply with Section 72 of the Act and encourage shareholders to convert their 
shares in book-entry form as soon as possible. 
 

8. Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
(Mandatory): 
 
a. Pursuant to the provision of  the Finance Act,2023 effective July 01,2023 the rate of deduction of 

income tax from dividend payment under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance ,2001 are as 
follows:  

(i) For Active Tax Payer: 15% 
(ii) For Non- Active Tax Payer: 30% 

b. Further according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax 
will be determined separately on “Active/Non-Active” status of principal shareholder as well as 
Joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts. 

c. In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding 
proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our 
Share Registrar, in writing as follows: 

 Name and Shareholding proportion Name and Shareholding proportionCNIC No. (No. of Shares) CNIC No. (No. of Shares)Principal Shareholder Joint ShareholderTotal SharesFolio / CDS  Account #Company Name  
d. The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of issue of this notice; 

otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint 
Holder(s). 

e. The corporate shareholders, having CDC accounts, are requested to have their National Tax 
Number (NTN) updated with their respective participants.  
 

9. Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Company’s Website: 
a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 223 and 237 of the Companies Act 2017, the audited 

financial statements of the Company for the year, which ended on 30th June 2023, are available on 
the Company's website http:// www.bwheels.com. 

b. If any shareholder, desires to get the hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the same 
shall be provided free of cost within seven working days of receipt of such request 
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10. Participation through video conferencing facility: 
The shareholders who are interested in attending the Meeting are requested to get themselves registered 
by sending their particulars at the designated e-mail address (bwlfin@cyber.net.pk) giving following 
details not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting:   Name of shareholder CNIC No. Folio No. /CDC Account No. Cell No. Email Address      

. 
11. Change of Address(If Any): 

      Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses immediately to the            
 Company’s Share Registrar. 
 
 
STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2017 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:  
 
This statement is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of 
Baluchistan Wheels Limited to be held on September 23, 2023, at which certain special business is to be 
transacted. The purpose of this statement is to set forth the material facts concerning such special 
business mentioned in item No. 5 of the agenda. 
 

Agenda Item 5 – Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements through QR – enabled 
Code and Weblink  
 

The SECP has allowed listed companies to circulate annual audited financial statements to its members 
through QR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the same in the form of CD / DVD / USB in 
pursuance of SECP S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023. The Company shall circulate Annual Audited 
Financial Statements through email address in case it has been provided by the member to the Company, and 
upon demand, supply hard copies of the Annual Audited Financial Statements to the shareholders free of cost 
upon receipt of a duly completed Request Form, which may be obtained from the Company’s website i.e 
http://www.bwheels.com. 
 

The Directors are not interested in this business except as shareholders of the Company.    
 
NOTE: Transport will be provided to members from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Building to 
attend the meeting. Departure from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Building will be at 10:00 am. 
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